
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given

below.

Meeting of the:

Date /Time:
Location:

Members:

Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton

Wednesday, December 13, 2017 @ 5:30 pm.

Mayor’s Office, 381 East Main St., Stoughton WI 53589

Scott Truehl (Chair), Roger Springman (Vice Chair), Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, John Kramper,

Denise Durancyzk, Ron Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde

1 Call to Order

2 Communications

3 Approval of the November 8, 2017 RDA Meeting Minutes

4 Discussion regarding Whitewater park with Park/Recreation staff

5 Discussion and possible action regarding demolition estimates for Highway Trailer
Building and update on Millfab demolition.

6 Update and possible action regarding TIF restructure

7 Future agenda items
 By-laws
 Financial Report

8 Adjournment

Next RDA meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 10, 2018 at 5:30 p.m.

NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL.

If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.





 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 
below. 


 


Meeting of the:  


Date /Time: 
Location: 
Members: 


Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 
Wednesday, December 13, 2017 @ 5:30 pm. 
Mayor’s Office, 381 East Main St., Stoughton WI 53589 
Scott Truehl (Chair), Roger Springman (Vice Chair), Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, John Kramper, 
Denise Durancyzk, Ron Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 


 
1 Call to Order 


 
2 Communications 


 
3 Approval of the November 8, 2017 RDA Meeting Minutes 


 
4 Discussion regarding Whitewater park with Park/Recreation staff 


 
5 Discussion and possible action regarding demolition estimates for Highway Trailer 


Building and update on Millfab demolition. 
 


6 Update and possible action regarding TIF restructure 
 


7 Future agenda items 
• By-laws 
• Financial Report 


 
8 Adjournment 


 
 
 
 
 Next RDA meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 10, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. 
 


            NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
 


If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting. 








MEMO 
 


TO: RDA 
 
FROM: Denise Duranczyk 
 
RE: Screening of buildings across from redevelopment site 
 
DATE: December, 2017 
 
On November 15, 2017 Bob Kardasz and I toured the Wastewater Treatment Plant to 
discuss screening of the plant that can be viewed from the redevelopment site.  There are 
some challenges because of poor drainage around the area.  Pine trees had been planted 
but died because the ground was too wet.  He said he would look into what options were 
available to screen with trees and get back to me. 
 
In addition, Bob reports that Uniroyal is conducting a study to improve energy efficiency 
in its plant.  The result of that study may be a change in its emissions and consequently a 
reduction in the odor from the plant.  Of course, cost will come into play and Stoughton 
Utilities and its partner WPPI will help Uniroyal find grants to implement energy 
efficiencies.  
 
On November 16, 2017, I spoke to Tom Lynch about an area in Mandt Park that could 
use some improvements to screen the school bus buildings.  The area is to the west of the 
fence, south of the river and forms a triangle with the river, fence, and road.  There are 
trees along the river that could be pruned and augmented to help screen some of the 
school’s buildings.  In addition, there is garbage in the tall grass which needs to be 
cleaned up.  Tom also told me that there is plan to plant trees to screen the bleachers. 













EARTH CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
	 Estimate 


PO BOX 402 
ORFORDVILLE, WI 53576 


 


Name/Address. 


 


Gary Blazek 


Date 
	


Estimate No. 	Project 


12/13/17 
	


187 


Item Description Quantity Cost Total 


labor Earth Construction LLC is pleased to submit a bid 
for the following work: Demolish and dispose of 
Carpet Warehouse building, break concrete floor to 
allow for drainage, remove exterior walls 2 ft below 
grade, backfil basement with clean material, top soil 
and seed. 


48,300.00 48,300.00 


ANY QUESTIONS OR COMMENTS CONTACT JON ONSGARD 608-290-2355 Total 	 $48,300.00 








REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, November 8, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.  
Mayor’s Office 
 
Present:  
Roger Springman, Ron Christianson, Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, Denise Durancyzk, 
John Kramper and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 
 
Absent and excused: 
Scott Truehl 
 
Others Present: 
Gary Becker    
 
Call to order:  
Springman called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
Sveum reported that the Carpet Warehouse closing will hopefully happen on November 10th 
with a contingency that the property is empty and ready for demolition.  Becker will inspect and 
let the lawyers know if the closing can take place. 
 
Approval of the October 11, 2017 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Durancyzk requested that under the approval of the September 20, 2017 minutes section that 
the wording be changed to add “those absent if they were not excused and excused if they 
contacted the chair or staff”.  The October 11, 2017 minutes will be revised to reflect 
Durancyzk’s changes.  Moved by Durancyzk, seconded by Hirsch, to approve the minutes of the 
October 11, 2017 RDA meeting as presented and amended.  Motion carried unanimously.     
 
RDA Financial Report: 
LaBorde went thru the financial spreadsheet that was in the packet.  Discussion took place on 
the legal, electric and storm water charges.  It was decided this report should be included in 
each meeting packet in the future. 
 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area: 


a. Millfab demolition update: 
Becker reported that Earth Construction is behind in their scheduling due to 
weather and will likely not start demolition until January.  All approvals are in 
place and grants are lined up and we are ready to demolish when Earth 
Construction is available.  Becker said Earth Construction will have a 
meeting with staff to discuss logistics, transportation routes and public safety 
in that area when the time gets closer.  Discussion took place on whether to 
do a press release and the timing of doing one.  It was decided to do a press 
release after the public safety meeting so the neighbors and general public 
can be informed of the plan for demolition and if the local papers and news 
stations want to run it they can.    
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes  
November 8, 2017 
 


b. Grants update: 
Becker reported he and Durancyzk went to the Build Grant interview and the 
committee was very impressed with our design charrette that we held.  We 
were approved for the grant and a check will be sent soon to cover our 
expenses for that weekend. 
 


c. Next steps for RDA/Council: 
Springman reported that Truehl had attended the last Landmarks 
Commission meeting as a representative of the RDA and Council and will 
work with the Landmarks Commission to help create new historic building 
ordinances. 
 


d. Budget Summary: 
LaBorde presented a preliminary budget for the RDA and explained it was 
hard to put together a budget without knowing what the plan or direction the 
RDA and Council wants to take.  Becker stated that he and Durancyzk are 
working on trying to get accurate Riverwalk and improvement numbers.  
Discussion took place about amending TID #5 and creating a new TID.   
 


e. Durancyzk RDA action plan - draft: 
Duranczyk presented her action plan and discussion took place on the items.  
Discussion included meeting with the parks and rec committee, emission 
issues with the wastewater treatment plant and screening the plant from the 
public.  Duranczyk will update her action plan and bring back to the next 
meeting.   
 


f. Durancyzk Redevelopment – Cost/Benefit Analysis: 
Discussion took place on the wants and needs of the Riverfront 
Redevelopment Area and the relationship between acreage and density to 
the TIF.  Becker stressed that those decisions are part of the tax increment 
restructure process.  Becker believes the RDA should work on getting the 
numbers finalized – what expenses will we incur and how much revenue 
would we need to make the TIF profitable, and then bring in a consultant like 
Mark Ernst.  Ernst would then listen to what we have and then bring back a 
proposal. 
 


g. Moline building initiative: 
Springman went thru his proposal.  Becker stated that Mark Ernst is excited about 
the possibility of preserving the blacksmith shop.  Discussion took place about 
possible uses for the building and the possibility of going in and taking pictures.  
LaBorde said she would have to check with Risk Management to see if it is possible 
to enter the building safely.   


 
 
 
 
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2017 


Discussion and possible action regarding TIF restructure: 
Becker went thru the tax increment restructure process and timetable.  Moved by Sveum, 
seconded by Christianson, to recommend the City Council initiate planning for an amendment of 
tax increment district #5 and the creation of a new tax increment district for the riverfront 
redevelopment area.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Cost Estimates for Highway Trailer and 
Carpet Warehouse Building demolition: 
There are no estimates at this time.  Item tabled. 
 
Review, discussion and possible action regarding RDA Bylaws: 
Springman led the discussion on the by-laws and rules of procedure changes he 
recommends for the RDA.  Durancyzk would like to see under section 2, General 
Powers and Duties, the wording of “on matters involving property transactions and 
policy and financial matters” struck from what Springman proposed to add.  No 
comments on adding the new section of Code of Ethics.  To be consistent with 
ordinance language it was suggested dropping the phrase executive director under 
section 3. The need for an Ad Hoc committee can be established at the Council level so 
it is not needed in the RDA by-laws.  The attendance policy section will be added with 
no changes.  Under section 4 change wording to “The City Finance Director or designee 
shall prepare the agenda with input and approval of the chairperson”.  Under section 5 
replace “Public Hearing” with “Public Comments”.  Discussion took place on section 6 
about voting.  The question came up about what happens if there is a tie vote.  LaBorde 
will research the language Council uses and will forward that to Springman. It was 
suggested the group finish reading the rest of the changes and bring back suggestions 
to the next meeting.  Springman will bring back a red-lined copy to the next meeting.   
 
Discussion regarding Whitewater Park: 
Hirsch gave a summary of the presentation she attended last week on the whitewater 
park project.  The Parks and Recreation Committee’s next steps are to either do a 
feasibility study or have an economic impact analysis done and they are interested in 
finding out if the RDA would be interested in cost sharing.  It was decided to invite Tom 
Lynch and Dan Glynn to the next RDA meeting to further discuss and hear about their 
ideas for a whitewater park. 
 
Future agenda items – Review and Discussion: 
Whitewater Park presentation by Parks Department 
Riverfront Redevelopment 
By-Laws 
 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Sveum, seconded by Hirsch, to adjourn at 7:52 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Lisa Aide 
Deputy Treasurer 








 
November 17, 2017 
 
 
Mr. Gary Blazek 
Vierbicher Associates, Inc 
999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 
Madison, WI 53717 
 
RE: Asbestos Abatement and Demolition Cost Estimate 
 Stoughton Highway Trailer Building 
 True North Project T217009 
  
Dear Mr. Blazek 
 
As per your request, True North Consultants, Inc. (True North) is providing the following 
engineers cost estimate for the abatement of asbestos-containing materials associated with the 
commercial structure(s) located at 501 East S. Street in Stoughton, Wisconsin (Site).  In 
addition, True North has provided a budgetary estimate for the demolition of existing structures 
at the Site. 
 
This estimate has been provided based upon the estimated quantities of material present, 
typical unit costs for abatement and demolition activities based upon the size of the project, the 
configuration of the work area and other logistical factors. 
 


Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description Location(s) 
Estimated 
Quantity 


Estimated Cost 


C Roof Field Located on the roof of the structure. 
12,000 Square 


Feet 
$12,200.00 


D Roofing Mastic 
Located sporadically along the perimeter of the roof 
and roof penetrations.    


120 Square 
Feet 


$1,200.00 


E Roof Flashing 
Located along the perimeter of the roof and roofing 
penetrations. 


1,200 Square 
Feet 


$2,400.00 


F 
Interior Window 


Glazing 
Located between the glass and window frames on the 
windows between Building A and Building B. 


8 Windows $2,400.00 


G Roofing Tar 
Located on the masonry brick between Building A and 
Building B where the buildings formerly connected.   


20 Square Feet $1,000.00 


D 
Corrugated Paper 


Insulation 
Located between Building A and Building B in the 
connecting corridor.    


20 Linear Feet $1,000.00 


O 
Aircell Pipe Insulation 


(Debris) 
Located on the floor of the tunnel as visible and 
comingled within soil and non-ACM debris. 


600 Square 
Feet 


$8,000.00 







 


Engineers Estimate   |   Asbestos Abatement and Demolition Services   |   Page 2 
 


Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description Location(s) 
Estimated 
Quantity 


Estimated Cost 


R Roof Field 
Located throughout the roof between Federal board 
and clay tile. 


15,000 Square 
Feet 


$14,400.00 


S Roofing Mastic 
Located sporadically along the perimeter of the roof 
and roof penetrations.    


400 Square 
Feet 


$1,200.00 


T Roof Flashing 
Located along the perimeter of the roof and roofing 
penetrations. 


2,000 Square 
Feet 


$4,000.00 


U Tar on Federal Board 
Located on portions of the federal board panels.   The 
extent of tar present could not be determined. 


15,000 Square 
Feet 


$14,000.00 


W Window Glazing 
Located on the remaining exterior windows.   The 
exact number of windows could not be determined 
due to security board-up. 


10 Windows $3,000.00 


X 
Electrical Panel 
Insulating Paper 


Assumed to be present along with transite 
components in all electrical panels at the Site.      


All Panels $8,000.00 


CC Window Glazing 
Located on the remaining windows of the structure.  
The exact number of windows couldn’t be determined 
due to security board-up. 


24 Windows $7,200.00 


EE Pipe Wrap – White 
Located on a portion of the piping at the northwest 
side of the elevator shaft in the basement.   


10 Linear Feet $500.00 


HH Roof Field 
Located on the roof of the structure.   Roof flashing 
and roofing mastic were inaccessible and should be 
assumed to contain asbestos.   


7,000 Square 
Feet 


$15,000.00 


JJ 
Aircell Pipe Insulation 


(Debris) 
Located sporadically on the floor throughout the 
basement of the building.   


5,000 Square 
Feet 


$8,000.00 


LL Window Glazing 
Located on the remaining windows of the structure.  
The exact number of windows couldn’t be determined 
due to security board-up. 


24 Windows $7,200.00 


NN 
Aircell Pipe Insulation 


(Debris) 
Located sporadically on the floor throughout the 
basement of the building.    


5,000 Square 
Feet 


$8,000.00 


NA Roof Field 
Located on the roof of the structure.   Roof flashing 
and roofing mastic were inaccessible and should be 
assumed to contain asbestos.   


6,000 Square 
Feet 


$14,000.00 


QQ Window Glazing 
Located on the remaining windows of the structure.  
The exact number of windows couldn’t be determined 
due to security board-up. 


24 Windows $7,200.00 


RR 
Silver Roofing 


Material 


Located on the remaining windows of the structure.   
The exact number of windows could not be 
determined due to security board-up. 


5,000 Square 
Feet 


$14,000.00 


NA Roofing Material 
The roofing system was not accessible at the time of 
the survey and should be assumed to be ACM.   


5,000 Square 
Feet 


$14,000.00 


TOTAL $165,500.00 


  
Based upon the scope of identified asbestos-containing materials at the Site, the estimated cost 
of abatement services is $165,500.00.   Based upon the scope of demolition activities to be 
performed at the Site, the estimated cost of demolition services including concrete/basement 
slabs, foundations and column pads and back fill w/ clean soils is $909,750.00.   The estimated 







 


Engineers Estimate   |   Asbestos Abatement and Demolition Services   |   Page 3 
 


cost for demolition of buildings including concrete/basement slabs, foundations and column 
pads, crush and place concrete and masonry debris as back fill in lieu of hauling and disposal is 
$735,000.00.  Both prices above include removal of asphalt parking slabs, including assumed 
concrete slabs and buried building foundations.    
 
If you have any questions regarding this document, or if we can be of further assistance, please 
contact us at your convenience. 
 
Sincerely, 
TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS 
 
 
Michael D. Brennan 
Senior Project Manager 
 








Demolition Cost Estimates Highway Trailer Building.txt
 From: Gary Becker <gary.becker.madison@gmail.com>
 Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2017 9:20 AM


 To: Donna Olson; Scott Truehl; Peter Sveum; Tammy LaBorde; Rodney J. 
Scheel


 Subject: Demolition Cost Estimates Highway Trailer Building
 Attachments: Cost Estimate_Asbestos Abatement and Demolition_Stoughton 


Trailer.pdf; Report_Stoughton Highway Trailer Building_Pre-Demolition 
Asbestos Survey_171117.pdf


I received the anxiously awaited report late yesterday and attached here. There are 
actually two 
reports - one is a summary, the other the full asbestos report. Neither addresses 
the Carpet 
Warehouse - True North will be going in to sample material either this week or next.
Also, this 
report does not address partial demolition of the Highway Trailer Building, which we
asked to be 
part of the scope of service. I have a follow-up email to Chris and Gary to find out
the status of 
that information.


Here are the numbers we now have for full demolition of Highway Trailer:
Asbestos Abatement - $165,500
Demolition using crushed brick/concrete to backfill - $735,000
Demolition using hauled-in fill - $909,750


Crushed backfill should be an appropriate fill for the site, so total cost of about 
$900,000. I'll let 
you know when I hear about the other information we requested.


I'll ask that the Vierbicher/True North folks attend the next RDA meeting to discuss
their 
findings.


Gary W. Becker, CEcD
GWB Professional Services
(608)444-0836


A veteran-owned business


Page 1








 


   


November 17, 2017 
 
 
Mr. Gary Blazek 
Vierbicher Associates, Inc 
999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 
Madison, WI 53717 
 
RE: Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey 
 Stoughton Highway Trailer Building 
 True North Project T217009 
  
Dear Mr. Blazek 
 
True North Consultants, Inc. was contracted by Vierbicher Associates, Inc. (Client) to conduct 
a limited asbestos survey of the commercial structure(s) located at 501 E. South Street in 
Stoughton, Wisconsin (Site).  Survey activities were performed by a Wisconsin Department of 
Health Services (WDHS) certified Asbestos Inspector (Michael Brennan – License No. A11-
111533) on October 18, 2017. 
 
The survey was conducted to identify the presence, location, and quantity of asbestos-containing 
materials at the Site.  The survey included an inventory of suspect asbestos-containing 
materials, an inspection and friability assessment of these materials, and sampling and 
laboratory analysis of identified materials.   
 
Bulk samples were submitted to a National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) 
National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program (NVLAP) accredited laboratory for 
analysis (CEI Labs, Inc. – Accreditation No. 101768-0).  Based upon the results of analysis, 
asbestos-containing materials were identified at the Site.  Enclosed with this cover letter 
is a copy of the asbestos survey report including procedures, findings, consultant documentation, 
and analytical results. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Vierbicher Associates, Inc.  Should you have 
any questions regarding this report or any other matters, please contact us at your earliest 
convenience. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS 
 
 
Michael D. Brennan 
Senior Project Manager







 


   


 
 
 


 
 


Pre-Demolition  
Asbestos Survey 


 
 


 
 


 
 


Commercial Structure 
 


501 E. South Street 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
 


 
 
 
 


PREPARED FOR 
Vierbicher Associates, Inc. 


999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 
Madison, WI 53717 


 
 


PREPARED BY 
True North Consultants, Inc. 
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Ste. 206 


Naperville, Illinois 60563 
Tel: 630.717.2880 


 
 


SUBMITTED ON 
November 17, 2017 


 
 


PROJECT NUMBER 
T217009 







 


 
 


   


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................... 1 


1.1 General .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 Background ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 1 
1.3 Scope of Services ................................................................................................................................................................................... 1 


 
2.0 SITE ASSESSMENT ............................................................................................... 2 


2.1 Site Description ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
2.2 Field Observations ............................................................................................................................................................................... 3 


 
3.0 METHODOLOGY .................................................................................................. 4 


3.1 Sampling Procedures ......................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
3.2 Analytical Methods ............................................................................................................................................................................. 4 


 
4.0 RESULTS ........................................................................................................... 4 
 
5.0 DISCUSSION ...................................................................................................... 7 


5.1 General ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ 7 
5.2 Findings ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
5.3 Recommendations .............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 


 


6.0  GENERAL REMARKS ............................................................................................. 8 
 
 
LIST OF TABLES 
 
Table 1   Summary of Suspect Asbestos-Containing Materials 
 
LIST OF FIGURES 
 
Figure 1  Subject Site 
Figure 2 Subject Site Buildings 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A Laboratory Reports and Chain-of-Custody Records 
Appendix B Consultant Licenses 
Appendix C Laboratory Accreditation 


 
 
 
 
 


 







 


   Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey Report   |   T1217009   |   11/17/2017   |   Page 1    


1.0 Introduction 


1.1 General 


True North Consultants, Inc. (True North) was retained by Vierbicher Associates, Inc. (Client) 
to conduct a pre-demolition asbestos survey of the commercial structure(s) located at 501 E. 
South Street in Stoughton, Wisconsin (Site).  Survey activities were performed by a Wisconsin 
Department of Health Services (WDHS) certified Asbestos Inspector (Michael Brennan – 
License No. A11-111533) on October 18, 2017. 
 
The survey was conducted to identify the presence, location, and estimated quantity of asbestos-
containing materials present at the Site.  The survey included an inventory of suspect asbestos-
containing materials, an inspection and friability assessment of these materials, and sampling 
and laboratory analysis of identified materials.   
 
Bulk samples of each homogeneous material (i.e. type of material with same characteristics 
installed at the same time) were collected and submitted to a National Institute of Standards 
and Technology (NIST) National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program (NVLAP) 
accredited laboratory for analysis (CEI Labs, Inc. – Accreditation No. 101768-0).  A total of one-
hundred and fifty (150) samples were collected during the survey.  The following report provides 
a summary of sampling methodology, findings, and recommendations. 


1.2 Background 


The environmental conditions associated with the subject structure(s) are being evaluated as 
part of the pre-demolition environmental due diligence process.  As part of this evaluation, True 
North was retained to conduct a survey of suspect asbestos-containing building materials 
associated with the aforementioned structures.  The purpose of the survey was to identify the 
presence, location and quantity of materials at the Site to assist in the management and/or 
abatement of identified asbestos-containing materials.  


1.3 Scope of Services 


In order to achieve project objectives, True North was retained to provide the following scope of 
services: 
 


 Review available site documentation and previous asbestos sampling reports provided 
by the client, if any, to identify the presence, location and quantity of known asbestos-
containing materials.   
 


 Conduct a survey of the structure to identify and delineate potential “homogeneous 







 


   Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey Report   |   T1217009   |   11/17/2017   |   Page 2    


groups” of material present.  For each identified homogeneous group, a representative 
number of samples were collected by an WDHS certified Asbestos Inspector. 


 


 Submit samples of suspect asbestos-containing material to a NIST/NVLAP accredited 
laboratory to be analyzed for asbestos content in accordance with the procedures for 
Polarized Light Microscopy (PLM) with dispersion staining, contained in EPA’s Method 
for the Determination of Asbestos in Bulk Building Materials, EPA/600/R-93/116 July, 
1993. 


 
 Provide a report including a summary of identified asbestos-containing materials and 


recommendations for the management of these materials.   


2.0 Site Assessment 


2.1 Site Description 


The Site consists of a former Stoughton Highway Trailer facility located at 501 E. South Street 
in Stoughton, Wisconsin.  The Site is developed with multiple interconnected structures which 
appear to be of various dates of construction as identified in Figure 1 of this report.   The 
structures at the Site have been defined as follows is indicated in Figure 2 of this report: 
 


Building A The structure consists of a single-story slab-on grade masonry building 
that encompasses approximately 12,000 square feet of space.   


 
Building B  The structure consists of a single-story slab-on grade masonry building 


that encompasses approximately 13,000 square feet of space.   
 


Building C  The structure consists of a four-story masonry building that 
encompasses approximately 28,000 square feet of space.   


 
Building D  The structure consists of a four-story masonry building that 


encompasses approximately 24,000 square feet of space.   
 


Building E  The structure consists of a three-story slab-on grade masonry with an 
attached single-story building that encompasses approximately 16,000 
square feet of space.  


 
Building F  The structure consists of a single-story slab-on grade masonry building 


that encompasses approximately 5,000 square feet of space.   
 







 


   Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey Report   |   T1217009   |   11/17/2017   |   Page 3    


 
The interior of the buildings generally consists of open space which was formerly used for 
manufacturing and warehouse operations.  The ceilings of the structures were generally 
observed to consist of wood or “Federal” concrete panels.  The walls of the structure were 
generally observed to consist of unfinished masonry brick.  The floors of the structures were 
generally observed to be unfinished.    
 
A boiler house formerly existed at the Site which was demolished prior to the date of the survey.   
A utility tunnel system was identified along the south side of Building B which extends to the 
basement of Building D.  Mechanical and plumbing systems within the structure were observed 
to be fairly limited and it appears that the vast majority of piping systems had been previously 
removed. 
 
The exterior of the buildings were generally observed to be constructed of masonry brick.  The 
majority of the windows at the Site were observed to have been previously removed and were 
covered with plywood security panels.  The roofs of the buildings were generally observed to 
consist of built-up roofing systems.   The roof of Building B was observed to be covered with a 
clay tile roofing system.    
 
At the time of the survey, significant damage to the roofing systems, flooring systems, and 
exterior masonry were observed which resulted in restricted access to portions of the building.   
Specifically, the following areas were inaccessible at the time of the survey:   Building B – roofing 
systems; Building D – second through fourth floor and roofing systems; Building E – second 
through fourth floor and roofing systems; Building F – roofing systems. 
 
2.2 Field Observations  
 


During site investigation activities, the following observations were noted: 
 


 The floors of the structure were generally observed to consist of bare concrete or wood. 
 


 Indications of suspect asbestos-containing pipe insulation debris was observed along the 
floor of the tunnel system and sporadically on the basement floor of Building C and 
Building D.  
 


 Spray-on fireproofing was not observed to be present at the Site. 
 


 Electrical panels were observed to be present sporadically throughout the various 
buildings at the Site.    Suspect asbestos-containing transite panels and components were 
observed within the electrical panels as well as asbestos-containing insulating paper and 
therefore all electrical panels should be assumed to be asbestos-containing.       







 


   Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey Report   |   T1217009   |   11/17/2017   |   Page 4    


3.0 Methodology 


3.1 Sampling Procedures 


Prior to sample collection, the inspector conducted a cursory visual inspection of the structures 
to identify the various homogeneous groups of material that were present.   Homogeneous 
groups (HGs) are defined as materials that are uniform in texture, color, and appear to have 
been installed at the same time.  A sampling plan was then developed based upon the identified 
homogeneous groups.  Sampling was conducted in accordance with the sampling plan discussed 
in the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act 
(AHERA).  Samples of each homogeneous group were collected within the building in order to 
obtain an overall representation of asbestos content. 
 
Representative samples of suspect asbestos-containing material (SACM) were obtained by 
removing a small amount of the material and placing it in a leak-tight container.  Prior to 
sampling, the material was wetted to reduce the possibility of fiber release.  Samples of 
surfacing material (SM), miscellaneous materials (MISC) and thermal system insulation (TSI) 
were taken randomly while attempting to sample damaged areas so as to minimize additional 
disturbance.  The location, description, and quantity of the sampled materials were recorded for 
future reference.   


3.2 Analytical Methods  


Bulk samples were submitted to a National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) 
National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program (NVLAP) accredited laboratory for 
analysis (CEI Labs, Inc. – Accreditation No. 101768-0).  Samples were analyzed for asbestos 
content in accordance with the procedures for Polarized Light Microscopy (PLM) with dispersion 
staining, contained in EPA’s Method for the Determination of Asbestos in Bulk Building 
Materials, EPA/600/R-93/116 July, 1993.  A visual, calibrated estimate of the material 
composition was determined using a stereo-binocular microscope.  Results of analysis were 
reported as a percentage composition.  
 


4.0 Results  


The total asbestos content was determined for each collected sample.  A total of one-hundred 
and fifty (150) samples were collected and submitted for analysis:  The following materials were 
determined to contain greater than 1% asbestos content by PLM analysis: 
 
 
 







 


   Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey Report   |   T1217009   |   11/17/2017   |   Page 5    


Building A: Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description 
Sample 


Number(s) 
Location(s) 


Estimated 
Quantity 


C Roof Field 7, 8, 9 Located on the roof of the structure. 
12,000 


Square Feet 


D Roofing Mastic 10, 11, 12 
Located sporadically along the perimeter of the roof and 
roof penetrations.    


120 Square 
Feet 


E Roof Flashing 13, 14, 15 
Located along the perimeter of the roof and roofing 
penetrations. 


1,200 Square 
Feet 


F Interior Window Glazing 28, 29, 30 
Located between the glass and window frames on the 
windows between Building A and Building B. 


8 Windows 


G Roofing Tar 31, 32, 33 
Located on the masonry brick between Building A and 
Building B where the buildings formerly connected.   


20 Square 
Feet 


D Aircell Pipe Insulation 34, 35, 36 
Located between Building A and Building B in the 
connecting corridor (including comingled debris).    


20 Linear 
Feet 


X 
Electrical Panel Insulating 


Paper 
70, 71, 72 


Assumed to be present along with transite components in 
all electrical panels at the Site.      


All Panels 


 
Building B: Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description 
Sample 


Number(s) 
Location(s) 


Estimated 
Quantity 


O 
Aircell Pipe Insulation 


(Debris) 
43, 44, 45 


Located on the floor of the tunnel between Building B and 
Building D as visible and comingled within soil and non-
ACM debris. 


600 Square 
Feet 


R Roof Field 52, 53, 54 
Located throughout the roof between the Federal board 
and clay tile. 


15,000 
Square Feet 


S Roofing Mastic 55, 56, 57 
Located sporadically along the perimeter of the roof and 
roof penetrations.    


400 Square 
Feet 


T Roof Flashing 58, 59, 60 
Located along the perimeter of the roof and roofing 
penetrations. 


2,000 Square 
Feet 


U Tar on Federal Board 61, 62, 63 
Located on portions of the federal board panels.   The 
extent of tar present could not be definitively determined. 


15,000 
Square Feet 


W Window Glazing 67, 68, 69 
Located on the remaining exterior windows.   The exact 
number of windows could not be determined due to 
security board-up. 


8 Windows 


X 
Electrical Panel Insulating 


Paper 
70, 71, 72 


Assumed to be present along with transite components in 
all electrical panels at the Site.      


All Panels 


 
Building C: Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description 
Sample 


Number(s) 
Location(s) 


Estimated 
Quantity 


CC Window Glazing 85, 86, 87 
Located on the remaining windows of the structure.  The 
exact number of windows couldn’t be determined due to 
security board-up. 


24 Windows 


EE Pipe Wrap – White 91, 92, 93 
Located on a portion of the piping at the northwest side of 
the elevator shaft in the basement.   


10 Linear 
Feet 







 


   Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey Report   |   T1217009   |   11/17/2017   |   Page 6    


Building C: Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description 
Sample 


Number(s) 
Location(s) 


Estimated 
Quantity 


HH Roof Field 
100, 101, 


102 


Located on the roof of the structure.   Roof flashing and 
roofing mastic were inaccessible and should be assumed 
to contain asbestos.   


7,000 Square 
Feet 


JJ 
Aircell Pipe Insulation 


(Debris) 
106, 107, 


108 
Located sporadically on the floor throughout the basement 
of the building.   


5,000 Square 
Feet 


X 
Electrical Panel Insulating 


Paper 
70, 71, 72 


Assumed to be present along with transite components in 
all electrical panels at the Site.      


All Panels 


 
Building D: Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description 
Sample 


Number(s) 
Location(s) 


Estimated 
Quantity 


LL Window Glazing 
112, 113, 


114 


Located on the remaining windows of the structure.  The 
exact number of windows couldn’t be determined due to 
security board-up. 


24 Windows 


NN 
Aircell Pipe Insulation 


(Debris) 
118, 119, 


120 
Located sporadically on the floor throughout the basement 
of the building.    


5,000 Square 
Feet 


NA Roof Field NA 
Located on the roof of the structure.   Roof materials were 
inaccessible and should be assumed to contain asbestos.   


6,000 Square 
Feet 


X 
Electrical Panel Insulating 


Paper 
70, 71, 72 


Assumed to be present along with transite components in 
all electrical panels at the Site.      


All Panels 


 
Building E: Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description 
Sample 


Number(s) 
Location(s) 


Estimated 
Quantity 


QQ Window Glazing 
127, 128, 


129 


Located on the remaining windows of the structure.  The 
exact number of windows couldn’t be determined due to 
security board-up. 


24 Windows 


RR Silver Roofing Material 
142, 143, 


144 


Located on the roof of the structure.   Roof flashing and 
roofing mastic were inaccessible at the time of the survey 
and should be assumed to contain asbestos.  


5,000 Square 
Feet 


X 
Electrical Panel Insulating 


Paper 
70, 71, 72 


Assumed to be present along with transite components in 
all electrical panels at the Site.      


All Panels 


 
Building F: Summary of Findings – Asbestos-Containing Materials 


HG Material Description 
Sample 


Number(s) 
Location(s) 


Estimated 
Quantity 


NA Roofing Material NA 
The roofing system was not accessible at the time of the 
survey and should be assumed to be ACM.   


5,000 Square 
Feet 


X 
Electrical Panel Insulating 


Paper 
70, 71, 72 


Assumed to be present along with transite components in 
all electrical panels at the Site.      


All Panels 


Notes: 


(1) The quantities of materials referenced within this report are solely intended to be “estimates”. 


(2) The scope of the investigation was limited to those materials specifically identified within this report.   In the event that any additional 


suspect asbestos‐containing materials are identified during planned demolition/renovation activities, additional testing is recommended. 


 







 


   Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey Report   |   T1217009   |   11/17/2017   |   Page 7    


A summary of identified suspect asbestos-containing materials is provided in Table 1 of this 
report.  Copies of laboratory analytical reports are provided in Appendix A of this report.  


5.0 Discussion 


5.1 General 


Due to the health effects associated with asbestos exposure, various federal, state and local 
agencies have promulgated standards and regulations for the performance of asbestos-related 
activities.  Specifically, asbestos-containing materials at the Site are regulated by the 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) through the Asbestos Standard for the 
Construction Industry, EPA through the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air 
Pollutants (NESHAPS), Wisconsin Department of Health Services (WDHS), and Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) regulations.  The EPA defines all materials with a 
percent composition greater than 1% to be an asbestos-containing material.  The OSHA 
regulations provide detailed work procedures and engineering controls that must be utilized 
when performing work activities that may disturb asbestos-containing materials.   
 
The scope of regulatory requirements for asbestos-containing materials is based upon the 
material’s friability classification.  Friability is defined as the ability of a material to become 
crumbled, pulverized, or reduced to powder by hand-pressure.  Friable materials tend to become 
airborne more readily than non-friable materials when disturbed, and therefore typically 
present a greater “hazard” potential to workers and/or building occupants and require removal 
prior to demolition/renovation activities that would result in their disturbance.  Non-friable 
materials are categorized by the EPA as either Category I non-friable or Category II non-friable 
materials.  Category I materials include floor tile and adhesive, roofing material, gaskets and 
packings.  Category II non-friable materials include all other materials not specifically classified 
as Category I.  Non-friable materials typically do not become airborne readily and therefore 
represent a lower hazard potential than friable materials.   Any work activities that may result 
in the contact or disturbance of asbestos-containing materials must be performed by 
appropriately trained personnel.   
 
5.2 Findings 
 
Based upon the results of analysis, friable and non-friable asbestos-containing materials were 
identified at the Site.  The following materials were determined to be asbestos-containing: 
 


 Roofing Field (Non-Friable) 
 Roof Flashing (Non-Friable) 
 Roofing Tar and Mastic (Non-Friable) 
 Window Glazing (Non-Friable) 







 


   Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey Report   |   T1217009   |   11/17/2017   |   Page 8    


 Aircell Pipe Insulation (Friable) 
 Aircell Pipe Insulation Debris (Friable) 
 Tar on Federal Board (Non-Friable) 
 Electrical Panels (Non-Friable) 
 Electrical Panel Insulating Paper (Friable) 
 Pipe Wrap (Friable) 


 
Although the majority of the asbestos-containing materials at the Site were observed to be non-
friable, the ultimate determination of friability will be based upon the forces likely to act upon 
these materials during demolition activities.    


5.3 Recommendations 


Based upon the results of analysis, asbestos-containing materials are present at the Site.  If 
demolition/renovation activities are to be performed that would likely result in the contact or 
disturbance of identified friable and non-friable asbestos-containing materials, abatement of 
these materials should be performed by appropriately trained and/or licensed personnel in 
accordance with the work practices outlined with applicable OSHA, EPA, WDHS, and WDNR 
regulations.  In addition, it should be noted that the WDNR/WDHS requires a 10 working day 
notification prior to demolition/renovation activities regardless of the presence or absence of 
asbestos-containing materials. 


6.0 General Remarks 


Materials which were suspected to contain asbestos were sampled during the survey.  True 
North made efforts to sample visible and/or accessible suspect asbestos-containing materials.  
However, True North is not responsible for the identification of suspect asbestos-containing 
materials that are not readily accessible due to enclosure, encasement, concealment or that 
cannot be accessed due to unsafe conditions.   In addition, materials such as fire doors and toilet 
ring seals were not sampled during the survey due to the destructive nature of sampling and 
therefore should be assumed to be asbestos-containing.    
 
The survey was performed to identify the approximate quantities and locations of asbestos-
containing materials present.    Quantities of materials referenced within the report are solely 
intended to be “estimates” of those quantities present and are not intended to be exact or 
otherwise utilized for bid purposes.  
 
The services performed by the environmental scientists on this project have been conducted with 
that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by reputable members of the profession, 
practicing in the same locality, under similar budget and time constraints.  No warranty is made 
or intended.  







 


 


 
 


 
 


TABLE 1 
 


Summary of Suspect Asbestos-Containing Materials 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Site Information: Client Information:


Stoughton Highway Trailer Facility Vierbicher Associates, Inc.
999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201
Madison, Wisconsin 53717


Survey Performed By: Inspector: Inspection Date: Job Number:


True North Consultants, Inc. Michael D. Brennan (License A11-111533) October 18, 2017


Space ID Floors Comments


1 Single-Story Slab on Grade Masonry Building


HG Material Description Material Type Friability Sample #'s Asbestos Content Estimated Quantity


A MISC  Non-Friable 1, 2, 3 > 1000 


B MISC  Non-Friable 4,5,6 > 1000


C MISC  Non-Friable 7, 8, 9 12,000


D MISC  10, 11, 12 120


E MISC  Non Friable 13, 14, 15 1,200


F MISC   Friable 16, 17, 18 1,200


G MISC   Friable 19, 20, 21 800


H MISC   Friable 22, 23, 24 1,500


I MISC   Friable 25, 26, 27 500


J MISC   Friable 28, 29, 30 8


K TSI  Non-Friable 31, 32, 33 20


Material Comments: Located on the masonry walls on the connecting building between Building A and Building B.


L TSI  Friable 34, 35, 36 20


Square Feet


Material Comments:


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments:


Square Feet


Material Comments:


Windows


Material Comments:


Located at the east side of the building on the walls.


15% Chrysotile Square Feet


Material Comments:


None Detected Square Feet


Located at the east side of the building on the walls.


Located at the southeast side of the building on the restroom walls.


Located sporadically along the perimeter of the roof and roof penetrations.  


Located along the perimeter of the roof and roof penetrations.   


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments:


Roof Mastic - Gray


Roof Flashing


Wall Plaster


2% Chrysotile


Located at the southeast side of the building on the restroom walls.Material Comments:


None Detected


Summary of Findings for Suspect Asbestos-Containing Materials


None Detected Square Feet


Square FeetNone Detected


T217009


Material Comments:


Square Feet


Material Comments:


10% Chrysotile


Material Comments: Located on the exterior walls of the building. 


Masonry Brick


Masonry Mortar 


Roof Field 


Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Located on the exterior walls of the building.


433 E. South Street


Building A


Located on the roof of the building.  


10% Chrysotile


Wall Board


Gray Paint


Particle Board


Non Friable


Located on the remaining windows within the building.


Interior Window Glazing 


Roofing Tar 5% Chrysotile Square Feet


Linear Feet65% ChrysotileAircell Pipe Insulation


1







Site Information: Client Information:


Stoughton Highway Trailer Facility Vierbicher Associates, Inc.
999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201
Madison, Wisconsin 53717


Survey Performed By: Inspector: Inspection Date: Job Number:


True North Consultants, Inc. Michael D. Brennan (License A11-111533) October 18, 2017


Space ID Floors Comments


Summary of Findings for Suspect Asbestos-Containing Materials


T217009


Stoughton, Wisconsin 
433 E. South Street


Material Comments: Located in Walkway Building "A"


M TSI  Friable 37, 38, 39 5


Material Comments: Located in Building "A"


1 Single-Story Slab on Grade Masonry Building


N MISC   Friable 40, 41, 42 1,000


Material Comments: Located on the ceiling of the tunnel system at the north side of Building B.


O TSI  Friable 43, 44, 45 600


Material Comments: Located on the floor of the tunnel system as visible and comingled with soil and non-ACM debris.   


P MISC  Non-Friable 46, 47, 48 > 1,000


Q MISC  Non-Friable 49, 50, 51 > 1,000


R MISC  Non-Friable 52, 53, 54 15,000


S MISC  Non-Friable 55, 56, 57 400


T MISC  Non-Friable 58, 59, 60 2,000


U MISC  Non-Friable 61, 62, 63 15,000


V MISC  Non-Friable 64, 65, 66 14,000


W MISC   Friable 67, 68, 69 8


X MISC   Friable 70, 71, 72 All


10% Chrysotile Square Feet


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments:


Located sporadically along the perimeter of the roof and roof penetrations.  


2% Chrysotile Windows


Material Comments:


15% Chrysotile Square Feet


Material Comments:


Material Comments:


3% Chrysotile Square Feet


Located on the roof of the building.  


Material Comments: Located sporadically on Federal Board panels.   The extent of tar present could not be definitively determined.  


Square Feet


Material Comments:


Located along the perimeter of the roof and along roof penetrations.   


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments:


Roof Field


Roof Mastic 


Roof Flashing 


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments:


Located on the exterior walls of Building B.


Located on the exterior walls of Building B.


Masonry Brick


Masonry Mortar


Mud Joint Fittings 


Skim Coat


Aircell Pipe Insulation (Debris)


PanelsElectrical Panel Insulating Paper


Located on the interior portion of the roof thoughout the building.  


Located on the remaining windows within the building.  


10% Chrysotile


Tar on Federal Board


Federal Board


Window Glazing 


65% Chrysotile


None Detected Fittings


Square Feet


Square Feet


Building B


None Detected


65% Chrysotile


2







Site Information: Client Information:


Stoughton Highway Trailer Facility Vierbicher Associates, Inc.
999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201
Madison, Wisconsin 53717


Survey Performed By: Inspector: Inspection Date: Job Number:


True North Consultants, Inc. Michael D. Brennan (License A11-111533) October 18, 2017


Space ID Floors Comments


Summary of Findings for Suspect Asbestos-Containing Materials


T217009


Stoughton, Wisconsin 
433 E. South Street


Y MISC   Friable 73, 74, 75 >1,000


4 Four-story masonry structure (including basement).


Z MISC  Non Friable 76, 77, 78 >1,000


AA MISC  Non-Friable 79, 80, 81 >1,000


BB MISC   Friable 82, 83, 84 >1,000


Material Comments: Located on the walls throughout the building. 


Located on the exterior of the building.  


Located on the exterior of the building.  


None Detected Square Feet


None Detected


None Detected Square Feet


Square Feet


Material Comments:


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments:


Material Comments:


Paint - Gray


Masonry Brick


Masonry Mortar


Paint - Silver 


Asbestos-containing "transite" panels and insulating paper should be assumed to be present in all electrical panels at the Site.


Building C


3







Site Information: Client Information:


Stoughton Highway Trailer Facility Vierbicher Associates, Inc.
999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201
Madison, Wisconsin 53717


Survey Performed By: Inspector: Inspection Date: Job Number:


True North Consultants, Inc. Michael D. Brennan (License A11-111533) October 18, 2017


Space ID Floors Comments


Summary of Findings for Suspect Asbestos-Containing Materials


T217009


Stoughton, Wisconsin 
433 E. South Street


CC MISC  Non-Friable 85, 86, 87 24


DD MISC  Non-Friable 88, 89, 90 240


EE MISC   Friable 91, 92, 93 10


FF MISC  Friable 94, 95, 96 400


GG MISC  Non-Friable 97, 98, 99 800


HH MISC  Non-Friable 100,101,102 7,000


II MISC  Non-Friable 103,104,105 50


JJ TSI  106,107,108 5,000


4 Four-story masonry structure (including basement).


KK MISC  109,110,111 >1,000


LL MISC  112,113,114 24


MM MISC  115,116,117 600


NN TSI  Non Friable 118,119,120 5,000


Square Feet


Located on the second floor on the ceiling near the elevator shaft.


65% Chrysotile


Material Comments:


None Detected Square Feet


Located on the walls and columns within the building.  


Located on portions of the piping systems within the basement of the structure.


Present in the west stairwell and suspected to be present at other locations at the Site.  


Located on the interior walls and columns within the building.   


Located on remaining windows of the structure.   The exact number of windows could not be determine due to security board-up.


Located on the roof of structure.   Roof flashing and roof mastic were inaccessible and should be assumed to contain asbestos.


Material Comments:


Located on a portion of the piping system northwest of the elevator shaft in the basement.   


Material Comments:


Linear Feet


Plaster


Roof Field 


Electrical Wire 


Linear Feet


None Detected


Material Comments:


Windows


Located sporadically on the floor within the basement of the building.   


5% Chrysotile Square Feet


Material Comments:


None Detected


Material Comments:


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments: Located on the third floor of the building on the interior walls.


Square Feet


Material Comments:


75% Chrysotile Linear Feet


Material Comments:


None Detected


Windows3% Chrysotile


Square Feet


Material Comments:


Material Comments:


Located along the northwest side of the second floor.


Located on the remaining windows of the buidling.  The exact number of windows could not be determine due to security board-up.


Sheet Flooring


Aircell Pipe Insulation (Debris)


Window Glazing 


Damp Proofing (Applied to Pipes)


Pipe Wrap - White 


Friable


Non-Friable


Building D


Non-Friable


Pipe Insulation - Debris 


Paint


Window Glazing 


Ceiling Paper


3% Chrysotile


Material Comments:


Non-Friable


65% Chrysotile Square Feet


None Detected


4







Site Information: Client Information:


Stoughton Highway Trailer Facility Vierbicher Associates, Inc.
999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201
Madison, Wisconsin 53717


Survey Performed By: Inspector: Inspection Date: Job Number:


True North Consultants, Inc. Michael D. Brennan (License A11-111533) October 18, 2017


Space ID Floors Comments


Summary of Findings for Suspect Asbestos-Containing Materials


T217009


Stoughton, Wisconsin 
433 E. South Street


OO MISC  121,122,123 >1,000


PP MISC  124,125,126 >1,000


4 Four-story masonry structure (including basement).


QQ MISC  127,128,129 24


RR MISC 142,143,144 5,500


SS MISC 145,146,147 >1,000


TT MISC 148,149,150 >1,000


1 Single-story slab-on grade masonry building. 


RR MISC 130,131,132 >1,000


SS MISC 133,134,135 >1,000


TT MISC 136,137,138 >1,000


UU MISC 139,140,141 >1,000


Located on the ceiling of the structure. 


Located on the walls of the structure.


Material Comments Located on the exterior walls of the structure.  


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments Located on the exterior walls of the structure.  


Masonry Brick


Mortar


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments: Located on the exterior walls of the building.  


None Detected Square Feet


None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments


Masonary Mortar


Federal Board Panels


Paint


Non-Friable


Material Comments Located on the roof of the structure.  The roof flashing and roofing mastic were inaccessi


Masonry Brick None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments Located in Building 5


Material Comments:


None Detected


Located sporadically on the floor within the basement of the building.   


Masonry Brick Non-Friable


Building E


Roofing - Silver Paint 3% Chrysotile Square Feet


Located on the exterior walls of the building.


Square Feet


Material Comments:


Window Glazing Non-Friable 3% Chrysotile Windows


Material Comments: Located on the remaining windows of the buidling.  The exact number of windows could not be determine due to security board-up.


Non-Friable


Non-Friable


Non-Friable


Building F


Non-Friable


Non-Friable


Non-Friable


Non-Friable


Masonry Mortar None Detected Square Feet


Material Comments Located in Building 5


Material Comments


None Detected Square Feet


5







 


 


 
 
 
 


 
FIGURE 1 


 
Subject Site 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







1240 IROQUOIS AVE, SUITE 206 
NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60563 


SITE LOCATION  


CLIENT 


FIGURE 


PROJECT NUMBER 


DATE 
NOT TO SCALE 


T217009 


1 


11/07/2017 


STOUGHTON HIGHWAY TRAILER BUILDING 
501 E. SOUTH STREET 


STOUGHTON, WI  53589 


VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES, INC. 
999 FOURIER DRIVE, SUITE 201 


MADISON, WI 53717 


SUBJECT SITE 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 


FIGURE 2 
 


Subject Site Buildings 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 







1240 IROQUOIS AVE, SUITE 206 
NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60563 


SITE LOCATION  


CLIENT 


FIGURE 


PROJECT NUMBER 


DATE 
NOT TO SCALE 


T217009 


1 


11/07/2017 


STOUGHTON HIGHWAY TRAILER BUILDING 
501 E. SOUTH STREET 


STOUGHTON, WI  53589 


VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES, INC. 
999 FOURIER DRIVE, SUITE 201 


MADISON, WI 53717 


SUBJECT SITE BUILDINGS 


BUILDING A 


BUILDING B 
BUILDING C 


BUILDING D 


BUILDING E BUILDING F 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 


APPENDIX A 
 


Laboratory Reports & Chain of Custody Records 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 







October 26, 2017


True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


CLIENT PROJECT: T217009; 217-009
CEI LAB CODE: A17-14934


Dear Customer:


Enclosed are asbestos analysis results for PLM Bulk samples received at our laboratory on
October 20, 2017. The samples were analyzed for asbestos using polarizing light microscopy
(PLM) per the EPA 600 Method.


Sample results containing >1% asbestos are considered asbestos-containing materials
(ACMs) per EPA regulatory requirements. The detection limit for the EPA 600 Method is <1%
asbestos by weight as determined by visual estimation.


Thank you for your business and we look forward to continuing good relations. If you have any
questions, please feel free to call our office at 919-481-1413.


730 SE Maynard Road • Cary, NC 27511 • 919.481.1413


Tianbao Bai, Ph.D., CIH
Laboratory Director


Kind Regards,







ASBESTOS ANALYTICAL REPORT
By: Polarized Light Microscopy


Prepared for


True North Consultants, Inc.


TEL: 866-481-1412
www.ceilabs.com


CLIENT PROJECT:


CEI LAB CODE:


TEST METHOD: EPA 600 / R93 / 116 and EPA 600 / M4-82 / 020


REPORT DATE:


TOTAL SAMPLES ANALYZED:


# SAMPLES >1% ASBESTOS:


T217009; 217-009


A17-14934


112


21


10/26/17







Asbestos Report Summary
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


PROJECT: T217009; 217-009 CEI LAB CODE: A17-14934


Client ID Lab ID Color Sample Description
ASBESTOS


%Layer


METHOD: EPA 600 / R93 / 116 and EPA 600 / M4-82 / 020


A2525664 Gray Masonry Brick None Detected1


A2525665 Red Masonry Brick None Detected2


A2525666 Gray Masonry Brick None Detected3


A2525667 Red Masonry Mortar None Detected4


A2525668 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected5


A2525669 Red Masonry Mortar None Detected6


A2525670 Black Roof Field Chrysotile7 10%
A2525671 Sample Not Analyzed per COC8


A2525672 Sample Not Analyzed per COC9


A2525673 Black Roof Mastic Chrysotile10 10%
A2525674 Sample Not Analyzed per COC11


A2525675 Sample Not Analyzed per COC12


A2525676 Black Roof Flashing Chrysotile13 15%
A2525677 Sample Not Analyzed per COC14


A2525678 Sample Not Analyzed per COC15


A2525679 Beige Wall Plaster None Detected16


A2525680 Beige Wall Plaster None Detected17


A2525681 Beige Wall Plaster None Detected18


A2525682 White Wall Board None Detected19


A2525683 White Wall Board None Detected20


A2525684 White Wall Board None Detected21


A2525685 Gray Paint None Detected22


A2525686 Gray Paint None Detected23


A2525687 Gray Paint None Detected24


A2525688 Brown Particle Board None Detected25


A2525689 Brown Particle Board None Detected26


A2525690 Brown Particle Board None Detected27


A2525691 White Interior Window Glaizing Chrysotile28 2%
A2525692 Sample Not Analyzed per COC29


A2525693 Sample Not Analyzed per COC30


A2525694 Black Tar Sealant Chrysotile31 5%


Page 1 of 5







Asbestos Report Summary
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


PROJECT: T217009; 217-009 CEI LAB CODE: A17-14934


Client ID Lab ID Color Sample Description
ASBESTOS


%Layer


METHOD: EPA 600 / R93 / 116 and EPA 600 / M4-82 / 020


A2525695 Sample Not Analyzed per COC32


A2525696 Sample Not Analyzed per COC33


Layer 1 A2525697 Gray Pipe Insulation Chrysotile34 65%
Layer 2 A2525697 Black Fibrous Material None Detected


A2525698 Sample Not Analyzed per COC35


A2525699 Sample Not Analyzed per COC36


A2525700 Gray Mud Joint Fittings None Detected37


A2525701 Gray Mud Joint Fittings None Detected38


A2525702 Gray Mud Joint Fittings None Detected39


A2525703 Gray Tunnel Skim Coat None Detected40


A2525704 Gray Tunnel Skim Coat None Detected41


A2525705 Gray Tunnel Skim Coat None Detected42


A2525706 Gray Tunnel Pipe Insulation Chrysotile43 65%
A2525707 Sample Not Analyzed per COC44


A2525708 Sample Not Analyzed per COC45


A2525709 Brown Masonry Brick None Detected46


A2525710 Brown Masonry Brick None Detected47


A2525711 Brown Masonry Brick None Detected48


A2525712 Brown Masonry Mortar None Detected49


A2525713 Brown Masonry Mortar None Detected50


A2525714 Brown Masonry Mortar None Detected51


A2525715 Black Roof Field Chrysotile52 10%
A2525716 Sample Not Analyzed per COC53


A2525717 Sample Not Analyzed per COC54


A2525718 Black Roof Mastic Chrysotile55 10%
A2525719 Sample Not Analyzed per COC56


A2525720 Sample Not Analyzed per COC57


A2525721 Black Roof Flashing Chrysotile58 15%
A2525722 Sample Not Analyzed per COC59


A2525723 Sample Not Analyzed per COC60


A2525724 Black Tar On Federal Board Chrysotile61 3%


Page 2 of 5







Asbestos Report Summary
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


PROJECT: T217009; 217-009 CEI LAB CODE: A17-14934


Client ID Lab ID Color Sample Description
ASBESTOS


%Layer


METHOD: EPA 600 / R93 / 116 and EPA 600 / M4-82 / 020


A2525725 Sample Not Analyzed per COC62


A2525726 Sample Not Analyzed per COC63


A2525727 Gray Federal Board None Detected64


A2525728 Gray Federal Board None Detected65


A2525729 Gray Federal Board None Detected66


A2525730 White Window Glazing Chrysotile67 2%
A2525731 Sample Not Analyzed per COC68


A2525732 Sample Not Analyzed per COC69


A2525733 Gray Paper  Insulation Chrysotile70 65%
A2525734 Sample Not Analyzed per COC71


A2525735 Sample Not Analyzed per COC72


A2525736 Silver,Gray Paint None Detected73


A2525737 Silver,Gray Paint None Detected74


A2525738 Silver,Gray Paint None Detected75


A2525739 Brown Masonry Brick None Detected76


A2525740 Brown Masonry Brick None Detected77


A2525741 Brown Masonry Brick None Detected78


A2525742 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected79


A2525743 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected80


A2525744 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected81


A2525745 Silver,Black Paint None Detected82


A2525746 Silver,Black Paint None Detected83


A2525747 Silver,Black Paint None Detected84


A2525748 White Window Glazing None Detected85


A2525749 White Window Glazing None Detected86


A2525750 White Window Glazing Chrysotile87 3%
A2525751 Black Water Proofing None Detected88


A2525752 Black Water Proofing None Detected89


A2525753 Black Water Proofing None Detected90


A2525754 White Pipe Wrap Chrysotile91 75%
A2525755 Sample Not Analyzed per COC92


Page 3 of 5







Asbestos Report Summary
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


PROJECT: T217009; 217-009 CEI LAB CODE: A17-14934


Client ID Lab ID Color Sample Description
ASBESTOS


%Layer


METHOD: EPA 600 / R93 / 116 and EPA 600 / M4-82 / 020


A2525756 Sample Not Analyzed per COC93


A2525757 Brown,Black Ceiling Paper None Detected94


A2525758 Brown,Black Ceiling Paper None Detected95


A2525759 Brown,Black Ceiling Paper None Detected96


A2525760 Gray Plaster None Detected97


A2525761 Gray Plaster None Detected98


A2525762 Gray Plaster None Detected99


A2525763 Black Roof Field Chrysotile100 5%
A2525764 Sample Not Analyzed per COC101


A2525765 Sample Not Analyzed per COC102


A2525766 Brown,Black Electrical Wire None Detected103


A2525767 Brown,Black Electrical Wire None Detected104


A2525768 Brown,Black Electrical Wire None Detected105


A2525769 White Pipe Insulation Debris Chrysotile106 65%
A2525770 Sample Not Analyzed per COC107


A2525771 Sample Not Analyzed per COC108


A2525772 White Paint None Detected109


A2525773 White Paint None Detected110


A2525774 White Paint None Detected111


A2525775 White,Cream Window Glazing None Detected112


A2525776 White Window Glazing Chrysotile113 3%
A2525777 Sample Not Analyzed per COC114


A2525778 Gray,Yellow Linoleum None Detected115


A2525779 Gray,Yellow Linoleum None Detected116


A2525780 Gray,Yellow Linoleum None Detected117


A2525781 White Pipe Insulation Debris Chrysotile118 65%
A2525782 Sample Not Analyzed per COC119


A2525783 Sample Not Analyzed per COC120


A2525784 Pink Masonry Brick None Detected121


A2525785 Pink Masonry Brick None Detected122


A2525786 Pink Masonry Brick None Detected123


Page 4 of 5







Asbestos Report Summary
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


PROJECT: T217009; 217-009 CEI LAB CODE: A17-14934


Client ID Lab ID Color Sample Description
ASBESTOS


%Layer


METHOD: EPA 600 / R93 / 116 and EPA 600 / M4-82 / 020


A2525787 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected124


A2525788 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected125


A2525789 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected126


A2525790 Gray Window Glazing None Detected127


A2525791 White Window Glazing Chrysotile128 3%
A2525792 Sample Not Analyzed per COC129


A2525793 Gray Federal Panel None Detected130


A2525794 Gray Federal Panel None Detected131


A2525795 Gray Federal Panel None Detected132


A2525796 Gray Paint None Detected133


A2525797 Gray Paint None Detected134


A2525798 Gray Paint None Detected135


A2525799 Red,Brown Masonry Brick None Detected136


A2525800 Red,Brown Masonry Brick None Detected137


A2525801 Red,Brown Masonry Brick None Detected138


A2525802 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected139


A2525803 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected140


A2525804 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected141


Layer 1 A2525805 Silver Roofing Paint Chrysotile142 3%
Layer 2 A2525805 Black Roofing Tar None Detected


A2525806 Sample Not Analyzed per COC143


A2525807 Sample Not Analyzed per COC144


A2525808 Red,Brown Masonry Brick None Detected145


A2525809 Red,Brown Masonry Brick None Detected146


A2525810 Red,Brown Masonry Brick None Detected147


A2525811 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected148


A2525812 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected149


A2525813 Gray Masonry Mortar None Detected150


Page 5 of 5







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Gray
Masonry Brick1


A2525664
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


Lab Notes: A2525664-A2525738 analyzed by SP


100%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Red
Masonry Brick2


A2525665
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


100%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Gray
Masonry Brick3


A2525666
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


100%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Red
Masonry Mortar4


A2525667
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


100%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar5


A2525668
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


100%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Red
Masonry Mortar6


A2525669
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


100%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Black
Roof Field7


A2525670
5%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85%Cellulose Tar 10% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


8
A2525671


Page 1 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


9
A2525672


Black
Roof Mastic10


A2525673
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


90% Tar 10% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


11
A2525674


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


12
A2525675


Black
Roof Flashing13


A2525676
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85% Tar 15% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


14
A2525677


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


15
A2525678


Beige
Wall Plaster16


A2525679
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%
20%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


Beige
Wall Plaster17


A2525680
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%
20%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


Beige
Wall Plaster18


A2525681
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%
20%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


Page 2 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


White
Wall Board19


A2525682
15%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85%Cellulose Gypsum None Detected


White
Wall Board20


A2525683
15%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85%Cellulose Gypsum None Detected


White
Wall Board21


A2525684
15%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85%Cellulose Gypsum None Detected


Gray
Paint22


A2525685
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%
20%


Cellulose Paint
Binder


None Detected


Gray
Paint23


A2525686
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%
20%


Cellulose Paint
Binder


None Detected


Gray
Paint24


A2525687
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%
20%


Cellulose Paint
Binder


None Detected


Brown
Particle Board25


A2525688
95%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


5%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Page 3 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Brown
Particle Board26


A2525689
95%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


5%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Brown
Particle Board27


A2525690
95%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


5%Cellulose Binder None Detected


White
Interior Window
Glaizing


28
A2525691


Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


98% Binder 2% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


29
A2525692


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


30
A2525693


Black
Tar Sealant31


A2525694
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


95% Tar 5% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


32
A2525695


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


33
A2525696


Gray
34


A2525697


Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


35% Binder 65% Chrysotile
Layer 1


Pipe Insulation


Page 4 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Black
Fibrous Material


A2525697
80%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


20%Cellulose Tar None DetectedLayer 2


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


35
A2525698


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


36
A2525699


Gray
Mud Joint Fittings37


A2525700
20%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%Fiberglass Binder None Detected


Gray
Mud Joint Fittings38


A2525701
20%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%Fiberglass Binder None Detected


Gray
Mud Joint Fittings39


A2525702
20%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


80%Fiberglass Binder None Detected


Gray
Tunnel Skim Coat40


A2525703
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85%
15%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


Gray
Tunnel Skim Coat41


A2525704
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85%
15%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


Page 5 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Gray
Tunnel Skim Coat42


A2525705
<1%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85%
15%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


Gray
Tunnel Pipe Insulation43


A2525706
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


35% Binder 65% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


44
A2525707


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


45
A2525708


Brown
Masonry Brick46


A2525709
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Brown
Masonry Brick47


A2525710
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Brown
Masonry Brick48


A2525711
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Brown
Masonry Mortar49


A2525712
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Page 6 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Brown
Masonry Mortar50


A2525713
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Brown
Masonry Mortar51


A2525714
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Black
Roof Field52


A2525715
15%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


75%Cellulose Tar 10% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


53
A2525716


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


54
A2525717


Black
Roof Mastic55


A2525718
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


90% Tar 10% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


56
A2525719


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


57
A2525720


Black
Roof Flashing58


A2525721
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


85% Tar 15% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


59
A2525722


Page 7 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


60
A2525723


Black
Tar On Federal Board61


A2525724
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


97% Tar 3% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


62
A2525725


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


63
A2525726


Gray
Federal Board64


A2525727
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


20%
80%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


Gray
Federal Board65


A2525728
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


20%
80%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


Gray
Federal Board66


A2525729
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


20%
80%


Cellulose Silicates
Binder


None Detected


White
Window Glazing67


A2525730
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


98%Cellulose Binder 2% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


68
A2525731


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


69
A2525732


Page 8 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Gray
Paper  Insulation70


A2525733
Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


35% Binder 65% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


71
A2525734


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


72
A2525735


Silver,Gray
Paint73


A2525736
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


15%
10%
75%


Silicates
Paint
Binder


None Detected


Silver,Gray
Paint74


A2525737
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


15%
10%
75%


Silicates
Paint
Binder


None Detected


Silver,Gray
Paint75


A2525738
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


15%
10%
75%


Silicates
Paint
Binder


None Detected


Brown
Masonry Brick76


A2525739
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


Lab Notes: Samples A2525739-A2525813 analyzed by Greg Ruff.


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Brown
Masonry Brick77


A2525740
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Page 9 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Brown
Masonry Brick78


A2525741
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


80%
20%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar79


A2525742
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar80


A2525743
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar81


A2525744
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Silver,Black
Paint82


A2525745
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


75%
25%


Paint
Tar


None Detected


Silver,Black
Paint83


A2525746
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


75%
25%


Paint
Tar


None Detected


Silver,Black
Paint84


A2525747
Heterogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


75%
25%


Paint
Tar


None Detected


Page 10 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


White
Window Glazing85


A2525748
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


70%
30%


Binder
Calc Carb


None Detected


White
Window Glazing86


A2525749
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


70%
30%


Binder
Calc Carb


None Detected


White
Window Glazing87


A2525750
Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


62%
35%


Binder
Calc Carb


3% Chrysotile


Black
Water Proofing88


A2525751
Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


75%
25%


Tar
Cork


None Detected


Black
Water Proofing89


A2525752
Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


75%
25%


Tar
Cork


None Detected


Black
Water Proofing90


A2525753
Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


75%
25%


Tar
Cork


None Detected


White
Pipe Wrap91


A2525754
Homogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


25% Binder 75% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


92
A2525755


Page 11 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


93
A2525756


Brown,Black
Ceiling Paper94


A2525757
85%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


5%
10%


Cellulose Paint
Tar


None Detected


Brown,Black
Ceiling Paper95


A2525758
85%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


5%
10%


Cellulose Paint
Tar


None Detected


Brown,Black
Ceiling Paper96


A2525759
85%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


5%
10%


Cellulose Paint
Tar


None Detected


Gray
Plaster97


A2525760
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


35%
65%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Plaster98


A2525761
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


35%
65%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Plaster99


A2525762
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


35%
65%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Black
Roof Field100


A2525763
25%Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


70%Cellulose Tar 5% Chrysotile


Page 12 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


101
A2525764


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


102
A2525765


Brown,Black
Electrical Wire103


A2525766
65%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


35%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Brown,Black
Electrical Wire104


A2525767
65%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


35%Cellulose Binder None Detected


Brown,Black
Electrical Wire105


A2525768
65%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


35%Cellulose Binder None Detected


White
Pipe Insulation Debris106


A2525769
5%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


30%Cellulose Binder 65% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


107
A2525770


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


108
A2525771


White
Paint109


A2525772
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


100% Paint None Detected


Page 13 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


White
Paint110


A2525773
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


100% Paint None Detected


White
Paint111


A2525774
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


100% Paint None Detected


White,Cream
Window Glazing112


A2525775
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


70%
30%


Binder
Calc Carb


None Detected


White
Window Glazing113


A2525776
<1%Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


62%
35%


Talc Binder
Calc Carb


3% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


114
A2525777


Gray,Yellow
Linoleum115


A2525778
35%
5%


Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


50%
10%


Cellulose
Synthetic Fiber


Vinyl
Binder


None Detected


Gray,Yellow
Linoleum116


A2525779
35%
5%


Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


50%
10%


Cellulose
Synthetic Fiber


Vinyl
Binder


None Detected


Gray,Yellow
Linoleum117


A2525780
35%
5%


Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


50%
10%


Cellulose
Synthetic Fiber


Vinyl
Binder


None Detected


Page 14 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


White
Pipe Insulation Debris118


A2525781
5%Heterogeneous


Fibrous
Loosely Bound


30%Cellulose Binder 65% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


119
A2525782


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


120
A2525783


Pink
Masonry Brick121


A2525784
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


75%
25%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Pink
Masonry Brick122


A2525785
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


75%
25%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Pink
Masonry Brick123


A2525786
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


75%
25%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar124


A2525787
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


35%
65%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar125


A2525788
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


35%
65%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Page 15 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Gray
Masonry Mortar126


A2525789
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


35%
65%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Window Glazing127


A2525790
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


65%
35%


Binder
Calc Carb


None Detected


White
Window Glazing128


A2525791
Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


62%
35%


Binder
Calc Carb


3% Chrysotile


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


129
A2525792


Gray
Federal Panel130


A2525793
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Federal Panel131


A2525794
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Federal Panel132


A2525795
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Paint133


A2525796
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


25%
40%
35%


Paint
Binder
Calc Carb


None Detected


Page 16 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Gray
Paint134


A2525797
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


25%
40%
35%


Paint
Binder
Calc Carb


None Detected


Gray
Paint135


A2525798
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Bound


25%
40%
35%


Paint
Binder
Calc Carb


None Detected


Red,Brown
Masonry Brick136


A2525799
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


85%
15%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Red,Brown
Masonry Brick137


A2525800
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


85%
15%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Red,Brown
Masonry Brick138


A2525801
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


85%
15%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar139


A2525802
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar140


A2525803
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Page 17 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Gray
Masonry Mortar141


A2525804
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Silver
142


A2525805


2%Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


95%Cellulose Paint 3% Chrysotile
Layer 1


Roofing Paint


Black
Roofing Tar


A2525805
65%Homogeneous


Fibrous
Bound


35%Cellulose Tar None DetectedLayer 2


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


143
A2525806


Sample Not Analyzed
per COC


144
A2525807


Red,Brown
Masonry Brick145


A2525808
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


75%
25%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Red,Brown
Masonry Brick146


A2525809
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


75%
25%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Red,Brown
Masonry Brick147


A2525810
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


75%
25%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Page 18 of 20







ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS
By: POLARIZING LIGHT MICROSCOPY


CEI Lab Code: A17-14934
Date Received: 10-20-17
Date Analyzed: 10-25-17
Date Reported: 10-26-17


Client ID
Lab ID


Lab
Attributes


Lab
Description


ASBESTOS
%


ASBESTOS BULK PLM, EPA 600 METHOD
NON-ASBESTOS COMPONENTS


Non-Fibrous


Client: True North Consultants, Inc.
1240 Iroquois Avenue, Suite 206
Naperville, IL 60563


Project:  T217009; 217-009


Fibrous


Gray
Masonry Mortar148


A2525811
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar149


A2525812
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Gray
Masonry Mortar150


A2525813
Homogeneous


Non-fibrous
Tightly Bound


40%
60%


Binder
Silicates


None Detected


Page 19 of 20







LEGEND: Non-Anth = Non-Asbestiform Anthophyllite
Non-Trem = Non-Asbestiform Tremolite
Calc Carb = Calcium Carbonate


METHOD: EPA 600 / R93 / 116 and EPA 600 / M4-82 / 020


REPORTING LIMIT: <1% by visual estimation


REPORTING LIMIT FOR POINT COUNTS: 0.25% by 400 Points or 0.1% by 1,000 Points


REGULATORY LIMIT: >1% by weight


Due to the limitations of the EPA 600 method, nonfriable organically bound materials (NOBs) such as
vinyl floor tiles can be difficult to analyze via polarized light microscopy (PLM). EPA recommends that
all NOBs analyzed by PLM, and found not to contain asbestos, be further analyzed by Transmission
Electron Microscopy (TEM). Please note that PLM analysis of dust and soil samples for asbestos is not
covered under NVLAP accreditation. Estimated measurement of uncertainty is available on request.


This report relates only to the samples tested or analyzed and may not be reproduced, except in full,
without written approval by CEI Labs, Inc. CEI Labs makes no warranty representation regarding the
accuracy of client submitted information in preparing and presenting analytical results. Interpretation of
the analytical results is the sole responsibility of the client. Samples were received in acceptable
condition unless otherwise noted. This report may not be used by the client to claim product
endorsement by NVLAP or any other agency of the U.S. Government.


Page 20 of 20


ANALYST: APPROVED BY:
Tianbao Bai, Ph.D., CIH
Laboratory Director


Saithya Painkal



















 


 


 
 
 
 
 


APPENDIX B 
 


Consultant Licenses and Accreditations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 















 


 


 
 
 
 
 


APPENDIX C 
 


Laboratory Accreditation 
 







United States Department of Commerce 
National Institute of Standards and Technology


Certificate of Accreditation to ISO/IEC 17025:2005


NVLAP LAB CODE: 101768-0


CEI Labs, Inc.
Cary, NC


is accredited by the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program for specific services, 
listed on the Scope of Accreditation, for:


Asbestos Fiber Analysis


2017-04-01 through 2018-03-31


Effective Dates For the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program


This laboratory is accredited in accordance with the recognized International Standard ISO/IEC 17025:2005. 
This accreditation demonstrates technical competence for a defined scope and the operation of a laboratory quality 


management system (refer to joint ISO-ILAC-IAF Communique dated January 2009).









		A17-14934.pdf

		A17-14934_10_26_2017_12_17_19_Asbestos_Report

		A17-14934



		NVLAP-PLM-TEM-2017-18[1].pdf

		NVLAP cert 2017-18

		NVLAP Scope 2017-18








By-Laws And Rules of Procedure V2 
Index:   Proposed new language tentatively approved (red).    


              Language or issues yet to be resolved (light blue).    


 


1.       GENERAL RULES BY STATUTE, ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTIONS  


The Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton shall be governed and 


controlled by Statutes of the State of Wisconsin, and as the same may hereafter be 


amended; by all ordinances of the City of Stoughton as they relate to the Authority, 


and as such ordinances may hereafter be amended and adopted; and by the within 


rules of procedure.  All provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes, ordinances or resolutions of 


the City of Stoughton as may be enacted from time to time, shall stake precedence 


over the rules of procedure.   


Code of Ethics:  All Redevelopment Authority members shall abide by applicable 


provisions of the City of Stoughton's Code of Ethics for public officials , Sec.2-2, 


Municipal Code.   See attached. 


If conflicts of interest or disclosures of financial interest are required by members, such 


conflicts or disclosures shall be immediately be reported to the Redevelopment 


Authority Chair and City of Stoughton Finance Director.   


 


2.      GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES 


The Authority shall exercise all powers conferred and perform all duties imposed, by 


state and local ordinance of the City of Stoughton, and shall perform such further and 


other duties as may from time to time be required by the Common Council , including 


frequent communications with the Common Council.    


Specific action taken related to eminent domain and the issuance of debt other than 


“conduit debt” which is not supported in any way by the City or RDA, shall be subject 


to review and approval by the Common Council .   


Creation of Ad Hoc Committees:  The Authority shall have the power to create ad hoc 


committees for the purpose of conducting research and/or generating 


recommendations for Authority consideration.  Each committee shall be chaired by an 


RDA member and shall have a specific mission or charge.           


 


3.      OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES 


Presiding Officers.  The presiding officer of the Authority shall be designated as chair 


and shall be elected annually at the meeting of the Authority in May of each and 







every year.  To act in the absence of the chair, the Authority shall elect a vice-chair to 


preside at the meeting.  The presiding officer shall preside at all meetings of the 


Authority and shall have the right to vote and make motions; shall rule on matters of 


procedure, subject to appeal from such rulings by proper motion; shall conduct the 


meetings in accordance within the rules; shall have such powers and duties as may be 


necessary for conduct of orderly meetings; and such other powers and duties as herein 


assigned to him/her, or as may be assigned to him/her.  


Secretary.  The Authority shall appoint an executive director who shall serve the 


Authority as its secretary and advisor and shall perform all duties requested by the 


Authority.  These duties include handling all correspondence and clerical work of the 


Authority; to keep accurate notes of all matters coming before the Authority; to 


receive and file all communications, applications; request any and all documents 


directed to the Authority; to mark each document so received with the official filing 


stamp of the Authority; to publish or mail, as the case may be, all notices and 


advertisements required by law or as directed by the Authority; to prepare and mail to 


each member of the Authority, a summary statement of the nature of each item on 


such agenda and a copy of the minutes of the last meeting.  The secretary may utilize 


such members of the City of Stoughton staff (clerk, finance director, planning director, 


etc.) as may be made available by the Common Council to accomplish his/her tasks. 


NOTE: This entire section to be re-worked in consultation with Tammy and others.    


The Authority may elect to open nominations for the office of chair or vice-chair prior 


to the expiration of either the chair’s or vice-chair’s term.  Should two (2) Authority 


members request to open nominations, the next RDA meeting agenda shall include 


said request. 


A motion to open nominations for the selection of chair or vice-chair of the Authority, 


prior to the expiration of either the chair’s or vice-chair’s term, shall be carried only by 


affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Authority’s members.  Should said motion to open 


nominations carry, the Authority shall immediately select a chair or vice-chair from 


among the Commissioners to serve the remainder of the respective term.  


Member Attendance Policy:  Members are expected to attend monthly meetings and 


special meetings.  If unable to attend, Authority members should contact the Chair or 


Finance Director at least 48 hours in advance of a meeting, except in dire, 


unavoidable circumstances which prevent notification.  After three absences in a 12-


month period, the Chair and City Finance Director shall meet with that member to 


discuss his/her attendance practices and review attendance expectations in writing.  


After a fourth absence in a 12-month period, the Chair and City Finance Director shall 


meet with the person to seek a mutually agreeable solution which may include 


resignation or dismissal from the Authority.   


 


4.      AGENDA 







The City Finance Director or designee shall prepare the agenda with the assistance of 


the chairperson.  


The City Finance Director shall prepare the agenda with the input, review, and 


approval of the Chair.    


 


5.      MEETINGS 


Meetings.  Meetings shall be held at a place and time designated by the Authority at 


its last regular meeting or, if this does not occur, at a place and time convenient for 


the Authority.  


Special meetings.  Special meetings may be called by the presiding officer whenever 


in his/her judgement such meeting is necessary, and the presiding officer shall call 


such special meeting whenever he/she is requested to do so by at least three (3) 


members of the Authority.  Such request may be made orally.  Notice of such special 


meetings shall be given by announcement thereof at any regular meeting and by 


written or telephone notice as hereinafter provided, to such members not present at 


such meetings, by written notice mailed not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for 


such hearing; or by telephone notice not less than 24 hours before the time fixed for 


such meeting.  Any business, which could be done at a regular meeting, may be done 


at such special meeting. 


Quorum.  A quorum for all meetings shall consist of four (4) members and the presiding 


officer shall be included in such a count. 


Order of Business.  The order of business at all meetings, regular and special unless 


varied by a suspension of rules agreed upon by a majority of the Authority shall be as 


follows: 


Call to Order 


Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting 


Old Business 


New Business 


Adjournment 


(Proposed) 


Call to Order 


Communications 


Public Comments* 







Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting 


Financial Report 


Old Business 


New Business 


Future Agenda Topics 


Adjournment 


 


*Public Comments:  Following standard City of Stoughton public comment protocol, 


community members may have up to three minutes to speak on topics of concern.   


 


6.      VOTING 


Provided a quorum is present and except as otherwise by law or these rules provide, 


the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present shall be required to decide 


any matter up for consideration. 


In the event that any member shall disqualify himself/herself to vote on any matter, 


he/she shall nonetheless, be counted in determining whether a quorum is present, but 


his/her disqualification shall not decrease the number of votes required for passage of 


any motion, resolution or the taking of any other action. 


Tie-vote provision:  Tammy is coordinating a review of this potential add.   A tie could  


happen IF a member is absent or abstains from voting.  The suggested procedure 


would be to allow the issue to come back up for reconsideration IF at least four 


members agree to that action after discussion.  If a second vote is conducted and the 


same tie results, the action shall be final for the current meeting and the topic may be 


brought back for action at a future meeting.    


 


7.      PUBLIC HEARINGS 


Conduct of Public Hearings.  The presiding officer shall announce immediately prior to 


each public hearing that no one will be heard unless he/she states his/her name and 


address.  The presiding officer shall briefly explain the order of business.  He/She shall 


have the right prior to the hearing to announce that each person’s statement shall be 


limited to a specified period of time, and that rebuttals shall be limited to a specified 


period of time, and he/she shall have the right to terminate any statement when the 


speaker’s time has elapsed, or in the event of unnecessary repetition, or in the event 


the statement is not material or germane. 







This entire section needs sharper focus and clarity.  On what basis would the Authority 


hold a formal public hearing?  To acquire properties?  Hear from adjacent land 


owners?  To make a TID decision?  Has the Authority ever held a formal hearing to-


date?  Also, the reference to "rebuttals seems odd.   What is expected or intended by 


that comment?  Are rebuttals assumed to come from Authority members or from some 


other party?   If to clarify points made by the speaker, it would seem difficult to specify 


a time limit.    


Appearance.  All persons desiring to be heard shall be heard, in person or by attorney.  


Withdrawal of Application.  At any time prior to a motion to grant or refuse a request, 


application or petition, the applicant may withdraw his/her request, application or 


petition and such withdrawal shall not entitle the applicant to a refund of whatever 


filing or publication fee may previously have been paid. 


 


8.      DECISION 


This entire section is confusing and needs sharper focus and clarity.  Is this section in reference 


to actions taken as a result of a Public Hearing?   If so, Section 8 may better serve as a sub-


section of Section 7 above rather than a stand-alone section.  


 Also, this section is confusing because no formal "resolutions" have been routinely proposed 


and adopted by the Authority, (e.g. year numeric ordering such as is conducted for City 


Council business).   It seems this section needs a reality check to make sure that the Authority 


is actually doing what is currently required here.  Again, wording of the last sentence seems to 


suggest a Public Hearing action or someone who has requested specific findings from the 


Authority.      


All final decisions by the Authority shall be in writing and shall be the form of an order 


or decisions duly adopted by resolution.  All such decisions shall be signed by the 


presiding officer, attested by the secretary, and shall thereupon be filed with the 


records of the case.  The date on which the written decision is filed in the case shall be 


deemed the date of filing of the decision.  The executive director shall promptly 


thereafter mail a copy of the decision to the applicant or petitioner or his/her attorney 


and to every other interested public official. 


 


9.      RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COMMON COUNCIL 


This entire section needs sharper focus and clarity. It is not clear what is intended here.   


What recommendations?   Recommendations from Public Hearing or routine 


Redevelopment Authority matters?   Is it only for actions which have a financial or 


budgetary impact on the City OR only for actions that have potential policy impacts 


related to land use, housing, environment, and economic development matters OR 


only actions which have a land transaction nature to them OR all of the above?    Per 


the same observation as Section 8 above, it would not be unreasonable to bring a 







reality check to this section to make sure the Authority has procedures in place to 


undertake what is being expected here.)      


Recommendations should be reviewed by the Common Council.  Recommendations 


to the Common Council may be by resolution or in such other form as the Common 


Council deems appropriate and upon adoption of any recommendation, the 


secretary shall deliver a copy of the same to the Common Council.   Each such 


recommendation shall contain a full and complete recital of reasons therefor. 


 


10.  AMENDMENT OF RULES 


These rules may be amended from time to time upon a concurring vote of a majority 


of all members of the authority and upon approval of the Common Council.  


NEW QUERY:  Should we add language indicating that rule amendments must be 


reviewed by the City Attorney with subsequent approval by the Common Council?   


Robert Rules of Order where no specific statute, law or ordinance controls shall govern 


the general rules of procedure of the Authority.  








REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENSES - 2017


11/30/2017                                     GL ACTIVITY REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                               


Date JNL Type Description Reference # Debits Credits Balance 


Fund 261 REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 


Revenues


261-00000-48110 INTEREST BEG. BALANCE   0.00


01/31/2017 JE JE WISC JANUARY ACTIVITY STATEMENT INTEREST 18.37 (18.37)


02/28/2017 JE JE WISC INTEREST - FEBRUARY 2017 INTEREST 17.82 (36.19)


03/31/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED - MARCH INTEREST 21.09 (57.28)


04/30/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED INTEREST 23.13 (80.41)


05/31/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED INTEREST 25.61 (106.02)


06/30/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED INTEREST 26.87 (132.89)


07/31/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED INTEREST 29.79 (162.68)


08/31/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED INTEREST 30.35 (193.03)


09/30/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED INTEREST 29.70 (222.73)


10/31/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED INTEREST 31.04 (253.77)


11/30/2017 JE JE TO RECORD WISC INTEREST EARNED INTEREST 30.73 (284.50)


12/31/2017  261-00000-48110 END BALANCE 0.00 284.50 (284.50)


 TOTAL REVENUES 284.50 (284.50)


EXPENDITURES


261-55100-50340 OPERATING EXPENSES BEG. BALANCE   0.00


 


01/13/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES DECEMBER UTILITIES 2016-501 E South St,314 W Main St 138.67 138.67


Total for Jan 138.67


02/09/2017 AP INV PETER SVEUM MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT - APPLETON 122.40 261.07


02/14/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES JANUARY UTILITIES 2017-501 E South, 314 W Main 10.14 271.21


Total for Feb 132.54


03/15/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES FEBRUARY UTILITIES 2017-501 E South, 314 W Main 276.82 548.03


03/30/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP FEBRUARY LEGAL CHARGES-Purchase 425 E. South St. 35.00 583.03


PAGE 1 12/11/2017







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENSES - 2017


03/30/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP FEBRUARY LEGAL CHARGES-Millfab Demo. 850.69 1,433.72


03/30/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP JANUARY LEGAL CHARGES-Millfab Demo. 1,278.00 2,711.72


Total for Mar 2,440.51


04/11/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES MARCH UTILITIES 2017-501 E South St,314 W Main St 143.48 2,855.20


Total for Apr 143.48


05/11/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES APRIL UTILITIES 2017-501 E South St,314 W Main St 143.65 2,998.85


05/25/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP LEGAL CHARGES - MARCH-425 E. South St. 682.50 3,681.35


05/25/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP LEGAL CHARGES - APRIL-425 E. South St. 758.00 4,439.35


05/25/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP LEGAL CHARGES - APRIL-Millfab Demo. 37.00 4,476.35


Total for May 1,621.15


06/15/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES UTILITIES FOR MAY 2017-501 E South St,314 W Main St 143.48 4,619.83


06/22/2017 AP INV DENISE DURANCZYK DESIGN CHARRETTE EXPENSES 81.27 4,701.10


Total for June 224.75


07/06/2017 AP INV FOSDAL BAKERY LLC RDA DESIGN CHARRETTE EXPENSE 119.56 4,820.66


07/06/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP LEGAL CHARGES FOR MAY-Riverfront Development 51.50 4,872.16


07/06/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP LEGAL CHARGES FOR MAY-425 E. South St. 1,073.00 5,945.16


07/06/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP LEGAL CHARGES FOR MAY-Millfab Demo 1,258.00 7,203.16


07/06/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP LEGAL CHARGES FOR MAY-Marathon Sale 814.00 8,017.16


07/07/2017 AP INV PIZZA PIT Design Charrette pizza potluck on 6-11-1 119.00 8,136.16


07/12/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES JUNE UTILITIES 2017-501 E South St,314 W Main St 143.48 8,279.64


Total for July 3,578.54


08/03/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP LEGAL CHARGES FOR JUNE-Marathon Sale 777.00 9,056.64


08/14/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES JULY UTILITIES 2017-501 E South St,314 W Main St 143.48 9,200.12


08/31/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP ATTORNEY FEES 7/1/17 THRU 7/31/17-Marathon Sale 1,373.10 10,573.22


08/31/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP ATTORNEY FEES 7/1/17 THRU 7/31/17-Millfab Demo 351.50 10,924.72


Total for August 2,645.08


09/13/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUGUST UTILITIES 2017-501 E South St,314 W Main St 143.48 11,068.20


09/21/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES PAST DUE FIRE PROTECT & STORMWATER FOR 4 3,421.40 14,489.60


PAGE 2 12/11/2017







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENSES - 2017


09/28/2017 AP INV STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP AUGUST ATTORNEY FEES-Marathon Sale 203.50 14,693.10


Total for September 3,768.38


10/12/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES SEPTEMBER UTILITIES 2017-501 E South St,314 W Main St 143.48 14,836.58


10/12/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES SEPTEMBER UTILITIES 2017-433 & 439 E South St 411.07 15,247.65


Total for October 554.55


11/13/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES OCTOBER UTILITIES 143.48 15,391.13


11/13/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES OCTOBER UTILITIES 445.64 15,836.77


Total for November 589.12


  261-55100-50340 END BALANCE 15,836.77  15,836.77


261-55100-50340-20200000 OPERATING EXPENSES BEG. BALANCE   0.00


 


01/05/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSULTANT DEC 2016 3,268.20 3,268.20


Total for January 3,268.20


02/09/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSULTANT JAN 2017 7,928.56 11,196.76


Total for February 7,928.56


03/02/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES MILFAB POLE REMOVAL 1,287.73 12,484.49


03/16/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSULTANT FEB 2017 4,361.40 16,845.89


Total for March 5,649.13


04/06/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MARCH SERVICES 8,636.40 25,482.29


04/20/2017 AP INV AMHI SERVICES LLC ASBEST. TEST-MILFAB 3,412.00 28,894.29


04/28/2017 AP INV US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS NATL CONSTRUCTION-FENCE 1,669.80 30,564.09


04/28/2017 AP INV ASLESON'S HARDWARE LED TEST KIT-RDA PROPERTY 12.65 30,576.74


04/28/2017 AP INV ASLESON'S HARDWARE DRILL BITS-RDA PROPERTY 10.07 30,586.81


04/28/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY SCREWS, STUDS, OSB BOARD-RDA 225.34 30,812.15


Total for April 13,966.26


05/04/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES APRIL SERVICES 6,836.40 37,648.55


PAGE 3 12/11/2017







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENSES - 2017


05/04/2017 AP INV RAMAKER & ASSOCIATES INC ALTA SURVEY-425 E. SOUTH ST 2,300.00 39,948.55


05/04/2017 AP INV VEOLIA ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES MILFAB SITE CLEANUP 9,766.00 49,714.55


05/04/2017 AP INV VEOLIA ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES MILFAB SITE CLEANUP 3,750.00 53,464.55


05/04/2017 AP INV VEOLIA ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES MILFAB SITE CLEANUP 1,263.40 54,727.95


05/31/2017 JE JE TO RECORD POSTAGE - MAY POSTAGE 47.05 54,775.00


Total for May 23,962.85


06/07/2017 JE JE PERMIT 2017273 PERMIT 2017273 695.04 55,470.04


06/08/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAY 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 7,639.80 63,109.84


06/08/2017 AP INV NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION RENTALS INC TEMPORARY FENCING FOR MILFAB/HIGHWAY TRA 750.00 63,859.84


06/08/2017 AP INV KRISTI PANTHOFER DESIGN, POSTERS, BANNER FOR CHARRETTE 570.00 64,429.84


06/08/2017 AP INV WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA MILFAB DEMO PROJECT ADVERTISEMENT 153.81 64,583.65


06/09/2017 AP INV US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS FEE FOR STORMWATER PERMIT 5.88 64,589.53


06/09/2017 AP INV US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS STORMWATER PERMIT-CONST WORK 235.00 64,824.53


06/09/2017 AP INV US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS TEMP 6' PANEL, SAND BAGS 750.00 65,574.53


06/21/2017 JE JE STORMWATER PERMIT #2017408 - RDA STORMWATER PERMIT #2017408 - RDA 160.00 65,734.53


06/30/2017 JE JE COPIER CHARGES - JUNE COPIER CHARGES - JUNE 4.00 65,738.53


Total for June 10,963.53


07/06/2017 AP INV REGINA HIRSCH DESIGN CHARRETTE REIMBURSEMENT 54.04 65,792.57


07/06/2017 AP INV WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA ADVERTISING FOR DESIGN CHARRETTE 736.80 66,529.37


07/13/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JUNE 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16,836.60 83,365.97


07/27/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE RDA CHAMBER MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 175.00 83,540.97


Total for July 17,802.44


08/08/2017 JE JE TO REALLOCATE TID #5 EXPENSES TO REALLOCATE ECON DEVELPMT EXPENSES 105,694.35 (22,153.38)


08/08/2017 JE JE TO REALLOCATE ECON DEVELPMT EXPENSES 868.20 (23,021.58)


08/10/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JULY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 868.20 (22,153.38)


08/25/2017 AP INV US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS TEMPORARY FENCING-HIGHWAY TRAILER 1,543.36 (20,610.02)


Total for August 2,411.56 106,562.55


09/07/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROF SERVICES AUGUST 2017 943.20 (19,666.82)


09/15/2017 AP INV ASLESON'S HARDWARE PRIVATE PROPERTY SIGNS 27.39 (19,639.43)


09/29/2017 AP INV STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY WOOD-HIGHWAY TRAILER BUILDING 73.48 (19,565.95)


PAGE 4 12/11/2017







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENSES - 2017


Total for September 1,044.07


10/12/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SEPT 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1,468.20 (18,097.75)


10/26/2017 AP INV NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION RENTALS INC TEMP FENCING FOR HWY TRAILER SITE 247.80 (17,849.95)


10/31/2017 JE JE PERMIT #2017273-EROSION CONTROL EROSION CONTROL PERMIT 331.63 (17,518.32)


10/31/2017 JE JE TO RECORD POSTAGE - OCTOBER OCTOBER POSTAGE 7.66 (17,510.66)


Total for October 2,055.29


11/09/2017 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OCT 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 471.60 (17,039.06)


43,069.00 JE JE TO RECORD POSTAGE - NOVEMBER NOVEMBER POSTAGE 0.46 (17,038.60)


Total for November 472.06


12/31/2017  261-55100-50340-20200000 END BALANCE 89,523.95 106,562.55 (17,038.60)


261-55100-50850 ADMINSTRATION BEG. BALANCE   0.00


 


05/09/2017 JE JE TO MOVE TO CORRECT FUND-HULTS ANNEX ANNEXATION COST-TOWN OF RUTLAND HULTS ROAD 15,274.21 15,274.21


Total for May 15,274.21


  261-55100-50850 END BALANCE 15,274.21 0.00 15,274.21


 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 120,634.93 106,562.55 14,072.38


 


PAGE 5 12/11/2017








City of Ann Arbor Canoe Liveries FY 2016
# of people boats on busy summer weekend day 2,000 people (1400 Argo + 600 Gallup)


Number of boats at Liveries 550 (119 can, 376 kay, 15 rafts, 21 SUP, 15 pb, 4 rb)


Number


of Boats


Number of


People
Revenue


Total Number of Boat Patrons & Revenue Gallup Livery 21,118 37,276 $387,925


Pond Paddles – Canoes & Kayaks 10,917 18,408 $171,770


Paddleboats & Rowboats 2,570 6,944 $28,444


River Trips - Canoes & Kayaks 7,631 11,924 $187,711


Total Number of Boat Patrons & Revenue Argo Livery 38,890 60,697 $803,445


Pond Paddles – Canoes & Kayaks 5,679 9,494 $90,472


River Trips – Canoes & Kayaks 25,887 41,025 $581,525


River Trips - Rafts 736 3,680 $48,525


Tubes - Cascades 4,549 4,459 $45,358


SUPs – Argo Pond 2,039 2,039 $37,565


# Pond People - A & G Canoes, Kayaks, PB, RB, SUP 36,885 $328,251 27%


# River Trips People - A & G Canoes, Kayaks, Rafts 56,629 $817,761 69%


# Boats # People Revenue


Delhi to Argo - 4 hours 146 250 $5,420


Barton to Gallup - 3 hours 5,075 7,104 $138,175 13%


Argo to Gallup - 2 hours 29,033 49,275 $674,166 87%


Total # River Trips 34,254 56,629 $817,761


Number of patrons Tubes - Argo 4,459 $45,368 4%


Total # people in rented boats (no camp/programs) 97,973 $1,191,370


% growth boat rental revenue Gallup from 2015 2015=$262,208 2016=$387,925 +48%


% growth boat rental revenue Argo from 2015 2015=$529,232 2016=$803,445 +52%


% growth boat rental revenue Argo + Gallup from 2015 2015=$791,440 2016=$1,191,370 +51%


% growth total boat rental # patrons (A&G) from 2015 2015=73,140 2016=97,973 +34%


Total number of campers in River Day Camps 466 $113,433


Total number of people in programs (boats not in POS) 831 $16,190


Total number of people in Livery boats = rental + programs 99,270 $1,342,034


Total number of people concession, fishing program, auction 14,000 $92,567


Total number people meeting room rentals 3,450 $18,518


Total number Liveries = boats + programs + coffee shop 116,720 $1,453,119


% growth in revenue Argo + Gallup from 2015 2015=$982,614 2016=$1,453,119 +48%


Fiscal Year July 1 2015 – June 30 2016 Expenses Revenue


Gallup Canoe Livery Fiscal YR 2016 $332,694 $572,273


Argo Canoe Livery Fiscal YR 2016 $470,021 $800,846


Total Gallup + Argo Fiscal YR 2016 $802,716 $1,453,119


Net Gallup + Argo Fiscal YR 2016 +$650,403


Good river conditions and weather July to October 2015. April to June 2016 generally good weather with only a few


days of canoe liveries closed for river trips due to high water.








Proposal for Planning Services 
Yahara River Whitewater Recreation Improvements 


Stoughton, WI 
November 10, 2017 


. 	Submitted By: 
Recreation Engineering & Planning (REP) 


485 Arapahoe, Boulder, CO, 80302 
(303)-545-5883 


www.repwhitewaterparks.com  







Dan Glynn, CPRP 
Recreation Supervisor 
City of Stoughton 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Dear Dan, 


Recreation Engineering and Planning (REP) is pleased to submit the following proposal and is 
excited to have the opportunity to work with The City of Stoughton on the whitewater recreation 
improvements project in the Yahara River. REP has extensive experience planning whitewater 
parks and navigating permitting challenges on similar rivers. 


The project site, with its gradient, location, and flow conditions, offers excellent opportunities for 
recreational enhancements. Creating new ways for the community to engage with the river will 
improve awareness of the multi-functionality and ecological health of the river. 


REP is well positioned and uniquely qualified for this project, as we have designed and 
constructed most of the whitewater river projects in the country. Many of our projects are on 
rivers similar in size to the Yahara and exhibit similar circumstances. We know the details of 
designing these projects and we are experts at permit acquisition and working with local agencies. 


Our parks are proven to be successful economically and in enhancing communities for local 
citizens. In addition to our extensive experience, we embrace cutting edge design approach, such 
as river surfmg specific design and a focus on community interaction. We view these projects as 
more than whitewater parks; they connect to the community and to existing park uses, and should 
be for everyone. In over 100 projects we have been involved in, we have faced complicated 
questions of engineering, environmental issues, regulatory hurdles, political situations, and 
funding realities. We will work closely with the City and resource agencies to meet the challenges 
inherent in an effort of this scope. 


We are uniquely qualified for this project not only for our experience but also for a familiarity of 
the area. REP's President Gary Lacy attended graduate school nearby in Madison, and paddled on 
this river many times. 


Please explore the attached document containing our company's profile and some past projects or 
visit our company's website (below). We look forward to hearing from you. 


Gary Lacy P.E. President 
Recreation Engineering and Planning 
485 Arapahoe Ave. 
Boulder, CO 80302 
303-808-4522 
www.repwhitewaterparks.com  







Re`citItion 
tagincering  & ptanning 


trww.boatuvarkw.curn 


Proposal 


The following proposal is for conceptual planning services for recreational improvements 
on the Yahara River in Stoughton, WI. This proposal is being sent to Dan Glynn of the 
City of Stoughton as requested. 


Gary Lacy of REP was on site on November 1st, 2017 to conduct a site visit, as well as 
present examples of similar projects to the City and public. 


The project site can be observed in the figures below. 


Figure I: Map of Stoughton with the project site outlined in red. 


Recremion Engins,:uing and Planning 	 2 
485 Arapahoe Ave 


DA11(101' CO 80302, 
(303.1545-58E3 


www,re 	e.wa tLiparks. corn 







4 


Figure 2: Photo of the Stoughton Millpond Dam at the project site. 


Figure 3: Photo of the South 4th Street Bridge downstream of the dam at the. project site. 


• Kt, 
Recreation 
E ngineering & Planning 


wnwhrutcrparks.ann 


Recreation Engineering and Planning 
485 Arapahoe Ave 


Boulder C018030:1 
(303) 545-5):;83 


www,repwhit%:!,,vnterparks,com 







Recreatton 
Engineering & Planning 


Work Item Task Cost 


I 
Kick off meeting with appropriate City staff. This also includes a site visit 
and review of site opportunities and constraints. 


Completed 


2 Obtain appropriate topographic and bathometric mapping, ownership, 
utility and flow data and create appropriate base mapping for the project. 


$1,300.00 


3 


Conceptual Design: REP will prepare a conceptual plan report that 
describes potential whitewater, bank, access, and navigation 
improvements along the Yahara River in Stoughton. The Conceptual 
Plan will include: 
•conceptual renderings of proposed whitewater improvements 
downstream of the South 4th Street Bridge. 
•a narrative report that analyzes the suitability of various sites for 
whitewater improvements (alternatives analysis) including a dam bypass 
alternative and a dam out alternative, describes the improvements at the 
preferred location and recommends next steps. 


$17,400,00 


4 
Detail of permitting requirements, timeline for permitting process, from 
applicable local, state, and federal regulatory agencies (Especially U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers and Wisconsin State DNR). 


Included in Item 
3 cost 


5 
Cost estimates for design and construction of the above elements. Included in Item 


3 cost 


6 
On Site Presentation: REP will travel to Stoughton to present the 
conceptual plan to the City of Stoughton and key stakeholders. 	• $3,200.00 


Sub-Total: I 	$21,900.00 


Estimate Travel Expenses: Only direct expenses will be billed. 1 	$1,200.00 


Total: $23,100.00 
Notes: 2) assumes the City of Stoughton will supply aerial photography and base mapping for concept 
plan. Estimate does not include cost of acquiring base mapping if suitable base mapping is not supplied. 
6) Assumes one full day in Stoughton. 


Rccrenion .12'.411,inQl-ing and Planning 	 4 
485 Alva AAv 


I3ouider CO I 80.302 
(303) 5/15-5:i 3 


1.mlx.repwhitcwaterpailis.com  







Invoices will be sent 
within 30 days. 


.-1r7  
Recitation 
Engineering &Pkanning 


Payment 


every 30 days for work completed plus expenses. Payment is due 


If the above proposal is acceptable to you, please print 2 copies, sign both copies and 
return to REP. 


Submitted by: 11/10/17 
Gary Lacy 	 Date 
REP Headquarters 
485 Arapahoe Ave 
Boulder, CO 80302 
(303) 545-5883 
gary@boaterparks.com  


Approved by: 
[Please Print Name, Title, 	Date 
Address, and 
Telephone Number] 


Recreation En.gineering and :Planning 
485 Arapahm Ave 


Boulder C0180302 
(303) 545-580 


www.repwhitowaterparks.com  





